
MEETING: PALM BEACH COUNTY COMMISSION ON ETHICS (COE) 

L CALL TO ORDER: April 7, 2011, at 3:33 p.m., in the Commission 

Chambers, 6th Floor, Governmental Center, West Palm Beach, Florida. 

It ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS: 

Judge Edward Rodgers, Chair 
Manuel Farach, Esq., Vice Chair 
Dr. Robin Fiore - Appeared telephonically 
Ronald Harbison 
Bruce Reinhart, Esq. -Arrived later 
STAFF: 

Alan Johnson, Esq., COE Executive Director 
Gina Levesque, COE Administrative Assistant 
Megan Rogers, COE Staff Attorney 
Sydone Thompson, Deputy Clerk, Clerk & Comptroller's Office 

III. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

Judge Edward Rodgers stated that Dr. Robin Fiore would be appearing via 
telephone and he asked everyone to turn off or silence their cell phones. 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM MARCH 3, 2011 

MOTION to approve the minutes of the March 3, 2011, meeting. Motion by Ronald 
Harbison, seconded by Manuel Farach, and carried 3-0. Robin Fiore and 
Bruce Reinhart absent 

(CLERK'S NOTE: Robin Fiore joined the meefing telephonically.) 

Dr. Robin Fiore stated that she had no correcfions to the March 3, 2011, COE 
meeting minutes. 

(CLERK'S NOTE; At the request of the chair, the agenda was taken out of sequence. 
Item XI. was discussed at this time.) 

COMMISSION ON ETHICS 1 APRIL 7,2011 



XI. REVIEW OF PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 

Alan Johnson, Esq., Commission on Ethics (COE) Execufive Director (ED) stated 
that: 

• At the March 3, 2011, COE meeting Manuel Farach requested a review of 
protocols for public comment so the COE could establish meeting 
procedures. 

• The review consisted of County public comment policies and procedures, 
State statutes, and case law for County advisory boards and Board of 
County Commissioner (BCC) meefings. 

• Florida Statute 286.011, the Florida Sunshine Law (Sunshine Law) did not 
specify whether public comment was required at public meetings. 

• Statutes found in Chapter 163 of the Sunshine Law indicated the types of 
advisory boards that permitted public comments prior to voting. They 
included: 

o The Planning and Zoning Commission that required the public's 
input prior to making a zoning or land-use changes; or, 

o Quasi-judicial duly noficed hearings facilitated by a special master. 

• The Florida courts extended the concept of public meefings to a 
marketplace of ideas in which governmental agencies received sufficient 
input from cifizens. Case law stipulated that public comments were 
permissible for legislative agenda items, but not for executive decisions. 

• Some County advisory boards published their agendas and one added a 
public comment agenda item. 

• Staff recommended that; 

o Public comments should not be taken for final public hearings for 
complaint cases and executive sessions; and, should be permitted 
at the beginning at COE meetings; 

o The chair had the discrefion to limit inappropriate public comments 
and impose time limits; and, 

COMMISSION ON ETHICS 2 APRIL 7,2011 



XI.-CONTINUED 

o A public comment secfion should be added to the COE's Rules of 
Procedure for non-execufive sessions and non-final hearings. 

o Examples of COE legislative actions included making 
recommendafions to the BCC and COE drafting committee 
regarding COE ordinance modifications, and amending the COE 
Rules of Procedure. 

(CLERK'S NOTE: Bruce Reinhart joined the meefing.) 

Mr. Farach proposed that public comments should be permitted for each agenda 
item, prior to the COE taking acfion by vote or otherwise. He added that public 
comments should also be permitted during meetings in which punishment was 
imposed. 

Mr. Harbison voiced his disagreement with Mr. Farach's proposal and suggested 
limifing public comments to two minutes. 

Mr. Farach stated that he agreed with Mr. Harbison's recommendation to limit 
public comment to two minutes, but at the discrefion of the chair, Judge Rodgers. 

Mr. Johnson said that: 

• In final public hearings, the public was not sworn prior to addressing the 
commission. Their statements, if directed toward substantive matters, 
could become evidence. 

• In sentencing hearings, evidenfiary or weighted statements made by the 
public should be disallowed. 

• Public comment should be made after the sentencing phase to avoid 
conflicts. 

Dr. Fiore expressed concern that members of the public would be permitted to 
make statements at a final hearing without being placed under oath prior to the 
commission handing down its penalty. 

Mr. Harbison said that he did not believe it was appropriate in the context of a 
hearing for the public to make comments. 

COMMISSION ON ETHICS 3 APRIL 7, 2011 



XI.-CONTINUED 

Judge Rodgers said that he did not believe that the commission had the authority 
to place members of the public under oath as a requirement for speaking at COE 
meetings. 

Mr. Harbison remarked that if a member of the public were not a party to the 
case while the COE deliberated, then their statements would muddle the 
deliberative process. 

Dr. Fiore said that if the public had not heard the evidence that the commission 
was privy to, then she questioned the value of their comments. 

Mr. Johnson said he had spoken with Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and 
Public Trust Execufive Director Robert Meyers, placed public comments at the 
end of its agenda, and experienced members of the public making weighted 
comments prior to the completion of the execufive session. 

Judge Rodgers said that the public was entitled to comment on the commission's 
acfions. He added that persuasive comments made by the public could infiuence 
the commission's decision-making process. 

Bruce Reinhart stated that he agreed with Judge Rodgers' statement. He said 
that in adjudicatory hearings, there was senfiment that the commission should 
take public comment prior to rendering sentences. He concluded that sancfions 
imposed by the commission should not be subject to the view of the public. 

Judge Rodgers said that he agreed with Mr. Reinhart's comment and that he 
recommended fine-tuning guidelines for such circumstances. 

MOTION to approve, subject to the discretion of the chair and excluding aspects 
of the Commission on Ethics that were evidentiary in nature, that public 
comment should be permitted with regard to each group of agenda items 
prior to the commission taking a vote. Motion by Manuel Farach. 

MOTION DIED FOR LACK OF SECOND. 

COMMISSION ON ETHICS 4 APRIL 7, 2011 



XI.-CONTINUED 

Judge Rodgers suggested that the matter be tabled for discussion at a future 
meefing. 

Mr. Johnson said that: 

• The COE could, at today's meefing, permit public comment for agenda 
items XL, X., XII., and XIV. 

• The final Public Comment agenda item served as a platform for 
commentators to address concerns that were not discussed during the 
meefing. 

• Most advisory boards permitted public comment at the end of meetings. 

• Members of the public should submit comment cards to speak on agenda 
items, and be limited to two minutes. 

(CLERK'S NOTE; The numeric sequence of the agenda was restored.) 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 

V.a. 

DISCUSSED: Public Comment 

Suzanne Squire after reading the COE mission statement, she asked that the 
commission received her document for public record purposes. She stated that 
the commissioners mistreated her at the prior COE meeting on March 3, 2011. 
She said that the commission was usurping its authority and treading on the 
people in the county. 

(CLERK'S NOTE: At the threat of disorderly conduct, the chair asked that the security 
officer be summoned to maintain decorum.) 

Alexandria Larson said that it was offensive when commission members stated 
they did not want to hear from the public. 

Judge Rodgers asked Ms. Larson if she had suggesfions on procedures for 
public comment. 

COMMISSION ON ETHICS 5 APRIL 7, 2011 


